# Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-22-2011

# Berkshires Investments, LLC v. Taylor Appellant's Brief Dckt. 38599

#### I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### A. NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal by Berkshire Investments, Thomas Maile and Colleen Maile, from a Judgment dismissing the Appellants' complaint, and a Judgment entered February 28, 2011 on the trust's counter-claim. The dispute evolved from a real estate transaction between the Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust, as seller (referred to as the "trust") and Berkshire Investments, as buyer. The Appellants filed their complaint against the Respondents alleging certain wrongful conduct including criminal conduct, fraudulent misrepresentations, and tortious conduct relating to a prior consolidated case captioned Taylor v. Maile. The Appellants assert multiple claims against the Respondents, to wit: (1) committing a fraud upon the court, (2) an imposition of a constructive trust, (3) tortious interference with contract, (4) tortious interference of prospective economic advantage and/or opportunity, (5) committing acts that constitute abuse of process, (6) committing acts constituting negligence, (7) violating criminal statutes which amount to Negligence Per Se, (8) committing acts constituting gross negligence, (9) committing acts amounting to equitable estoppel, (10) committing acts amounting to quasi estoppel, (11) committing acts in violations under Chapter 18 Title 78 of the I.C. (Racketeering), (12) committing acts which constitute judicial estoppel. The Respondents, The Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust, Dallan Taylor, and R. John Taylor filed their counter-clam alleging abuse of process, slander of title, and tortious interference of prospective economic advantage.

#### B. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

A complaint was filed by the Appellants on December 31, 2007. An Amended Complaint was filed on March 25, 2008 (R. Vol 1. p. 000060). The Respondents filed their Answers in May 2008. The Respondents filed their Motion to Dismiss/Motions for Summary Judgment. The parties filed pleadings in support and opposition to the motions. The trust & the Taylor brothers filed their Amended Answer and Counter-claim on February 17, 2009 (R. Vol 1. p. 001019). Clark & Feeney, Connie Taylor & Paul T. Clark filed their Amended Answer and Counter-claim on March 13, 2009 (R. Vol 1. p. 001030). The Appellants filed their Motion for Summary Judgment and supporting affidavits on March 17, 2009 (R. Vol 1. p. 01042). The Honorable Richard Greenwood, granted the Respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment dismissing the Appellants' claims by an Order entered July 2, 2009 (R. Vol 1. p. 001363). The District Court, reasoned that the claims of the Appellants were barred by res judicata.

The counter-claims of Clark & Feeney, Connie Taylor and Paul T. Clark were dismissed by stipulation on December 2, 2010 (R. Vol 1. p. 001882). The counter-claims of The Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust, Dallan Taylor, and R. John Taylor proceeded to jury trial resulting in a judgment against the Appellants on February 4, 2011 (R. Vol 1. p. 002408). On March 7, 2011, the Appellants filed their Notice of Appeal (R. Vol 1. p. 002438).

Pursuant to post-trial motions the District Court entered its Order on May 9, 2011, denying the Appellants' Motion for JNOV (R. Vol 1. p. 002521). The District Court awarded the

Respondents Clark & Feeney their costs and attorneys fees and further awarded the Respondent trust its costs (R. Vol 1. p. 002524).

#### C. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

This Court previously considered certain issues involving the Appellants and The Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust, Reed Taylor, Dallan Taylor, and R. John Taylor, in the consolidated case captioned, Taylor v. Maile. Addendum "A" is a condensed recital of sworn verified statements, portions of deposition testimony, declarations against interests of key facts supporting the Appellants' claims.

Reed Taylor, Dallan Taylor, and R. John Taylor, as beneficiaries of the trust filed, their complaint against the Appellants on January 23, 2004 (T. E. 110 p. 385). The Honorable Judge Ronald Wilper, entered his Order dismissing the claims of the Taylors ruling that as beneficiaries the Taylors did not have standing to pursue their claims on their behalf or on behalf of the trust (R. Vol 1. p. 000198 In. 19). On June 4, 2004, the Taylor brothers filed their Notice of Appeal regarding the Order dismissing the beneficiaries complaint (R. Vol 1. p. 000211 ln. 9).

On April 14, 2004, Connie Taylor drafted a letter to Bart Harwood which established that her clients, the Taylor brothers would disclaim their rights as beneficiaries of the trust in exchange for the successor nominated trustees, Beth Roger's cooperation and surrender of her trustee status, which would allow the Taylor brothers to gain control of the trust (R. Vol 1. p. 000561). On July 15, 2004, the Taylors entered into a "Disclaimer, Release and Indemnity

Agreement" with the nominated successor trustees and all other beneficiaries of the trust (R. Vol 1. p. 000611- annexed as Addendum B).

The Taylors pursuant to the Disclaimer, assuming they were the successor trustees of the trust filed a new Complaint against the Appellants on July 19, 2004. (Case 33781 R. Vol 1. p. 00005). While the Taylor brothers' appeal was pending, the current Appellants had claims pending against the Taylor brothers and the trust in the two consolidated cases before the Honorable Judge Wilper (Case 33781 R. Vol 1. p. 000053).

On October 20, 2004, the Appellants filed their Motion to Dismiss Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial/Motion for Summary Judgment relating to the "trust's" complaint. One of the issues raised by the Appellants in their Motion to Dismiss was the issue of the legitimacy of the complaint filed by the "trust" since the alleged successor trustees, (the individual Taylors) had not received the required Court appointment making them successor trustees, pursuant to I.C. 68-101 & I.C. 68-107 (case 33781 R. Vol 1. p. 00063).

The Taylor Brothers initially denied any court appointment was necessary for their appointment as successor trustees. After receiving the Motion to Dismiss, Connie Taylor representing her husband John Taylor filed a verified Petition for the Appointment of Trustees. The petition was executed by R. John Taylor on November 12, 2004, as a verification of the facts contained in the petition. Page 2 of the verified petition stated under oath, "the petitioner's 88-year-old mother, Helen Taylor, is the sole remaining beneficiary of this trust by virtue of the

terms of a Disclaimer, Release and Indemnity Agreement." (R. Vol 1. p. 000111). Prior to the Disclaimer Agreement, Helen Taylor was an income beneficiaries for her lifetime. Any distribution of income under the trust was discretionary with the trustees. Prior to the Disclaimer Agreement Helen Taylor had no right under the trust to receive any portion of the trust corpus (R. Vol 1. p. 000431 ln.9 thru 25).

The Taylors obtained an ex-parte order from the probate court on November 17, 2004, appointing them as successor trustees, retroactively to June 10, 2004 (R. Vol 1. p. 000067 ln. 6). On February 28, 2005, the Appellants filed appropriate pleadings before the probate court requesting that the ex-parte Order dated November 17, 2004 be set aside. On April 18, 2005, the probate court, entered its Order declaring the ex-parte Order entered on November 17, 2004 void (R. Vol 1. p. 000068 ln. 3).

On May 2, 2005, the Honorable Judge Christopher M. Beiter, entered an Order appointing R. John Taylor, Reed J. Taylor and Dallan J. Taylor as successor trustees of the Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust (R. Vol 1. p. 000068). At that probate court hearing John Taylor testified "my mother is the beneficiary of the trust" (R. Vol 1. pp. 000348).

The Honorable Judge Wilper entered his Memorandum Decision and Order on 7/28/05 allowing the trust to amend its complaint after the Taylor brothers received the required appointment by the probate court, and denying the Appellants' motion regarding that issue of law. Judge Wilper did however, grant the Appellants' motion in part ruling that the Taylor

Brothers, now with standing as trustees, had waived rights to rescind the contract as "once a party treats a contract as valid after the appearance of facts giving rise to a right of recision, the right of recision is waived." (R. Vol 1. p. 000649 ln. 10).

The trust & the Taylor brothers moved for summary judgment regarding the Appellants' counter-claim on May 13, 2005 (case 33781 R. Vol I. p. 84). On December 23, 2005, the Supreme Court, issued its Decision on the first appeal brought by the individual Taylors brothers (case 33781 R. Vol II. p. 227). The Supreme Court in its December 2005 Decision, held in Taylor v. Maile I, that beneficiaries such as the Taylor brothers had standing to pursue claims based upon the allegations contained in their complaint filed in January 2004. In light of the Decision, Judge Wilper ordered additional briefing regarding pending motions for summary judgment (case 33781 R. Vol II. p. 241).

On January 13, 2006, Connie Taylor prepared and filed a motion for leave to file an amended complaint with a proposed verified Amended Complaint, which R. John Taylor executed as a verified pleading (T.E. 132 p. 478). The Amended Complaint & Demand for Jury Trial was filed on March 9, 2006, alleging "all of the plaintiffs are residual beneficiaries of the Theodore L. Johnson Trust" (case 33781 R. Vol II. p. 260).

Judge Wilper entered his Order Regarding Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment, on February 13, 2006, which granted in part and denied in part the trust & the Taylor brothers' Motion for Summary Judgment ruling that the Appellants were entitled to pursue portions of

their counter-claim, to wit: tortuous interference with contract claims, equitable estoppel, quasiestoppel, and their claim alleging a fraudulent transfer (R. Vol 1. pp. 000268, 273 ln. 10).

On February 13,2006, the individual Taylor brothers, alleging they were beneficiaries, filed their Motion for Summary Judgment & Memorandum Brief (R. Vol I. pp. 000655, 000660). On May 15, 2006, the district court entered its Order Granting Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims (case 33781 R. Vol II. p. 281). The district court entered the "Judgment on *Beneficiaries*' Claims" on June 7, 2006 (R. Vol 1. p. 000119). The Appellants filed their Lis Pendens on May 18, 2006 (R. Vol 1. p. 001052. An appeal was filed on December 12, 2006. Judge Wilper denied the Taylor Brothers' motion to remove the Vendee's Lien (R. Vol I. p. 001440).

During the appeal, the Appellants filed their independent action on December 31, 2007, alleging both equitable remedies and claims for damages (R. Vol 1. p. 000017). The Appellants filed their amended complaint and filed a Lis Pendens on March 18, 2008 (R. Vol 1. p. 001396).

On October 14, 2009 the Honorable Judge Wilper determined, the Appellants were entitled to maintain a vendee's lien against the property to secure the return of the purchase price, less costs which have been previously awarded by the Court (R. Vol I. p. 001440).

#### II. ISSUES ON APPEAL

Was the District Court correct in entering the Order dismissing the Appellants' Amended
 Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial?

- 2. Was the District Court correct in denying the Appellants' Motion to Reconsider?
- 3. Was the District Court correct in denying the Appellants' affirmative defense of litigation privilege which would have barred the counter-claims of the Respondents?
- 4. Was the District Court correct in denying the Appellants' claims to set aside the "Judgment based upon Beneficiaries' Claims", based upon "fraud upon the court" and/or fraud upon the court by "officers of the court"?
- 5. Was the District Court correct in dismissing the Appellants' claims based upon the fraudulent-criminal conduct of the Respondents in obtaining "Judgment based upon Beneficiaries' Claims"?
- 6. Did the "fraud upon the court" committed by the "officers of the court" vitiate all subsequent legal actions?
- 7. Was the Judgment entered on February 28, 2011 supported by substantial, and competent evidence?
- 8. Can the filing of a complaint give rise to a finding of an abuse of process and tortious interference with prospective business advantage?'
- 9. Was the verdict finding an abuse of process and tortious interference with prospective business advantage improper as respondents failed to provide any evidence contradicting that the lis pendens were properly filed?
- 10. Was the District Court correct in denying the Appellants' Motion for JNOV?

- 11. Was the District Court correct in awarding costs and attorneys fees pursuant to I.C. §§ 12-123 to the Respondents and denying the Appellants' costs?
- 12. Are the Appellants entitled to attorney's fees and costs on appeal pursuant to rules 40 and 41 of the Idaho Appellate Rules and I.C. §§ 12-121, 18-8701 et. Seq.?

#### II. ARGUMENT

### 1. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS IMPROPER AS RES JUDICATA DOES NOT APPLY TO THE APPELLANTS' CLAMS.

A. There was litigation misconduct committed by respondents that defeats the application of res judicata.

An analysis of the facts is required to determine the extent of the fraudulent-criminal behavior perpetrated by the Respondents before Judge Wilper. The fundamental and essential truth is that the Taylor Brothers and their counsel knew beyond certainty that the Taylor Brothers were no longer beneficiaries of the trust when they filed their verified pleadings in January 2006 claiming they were residual beneficiaries of the trust. The reason they provided such misrepresentations was to take advantage of the Idaho Supreme Court Decision rendered in December 2005, holding beneficiaries had standing to sue. The Respondents committed perjury and the subordination of perjury in obtaining the "Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims". The case of State v. Wolfrum, 145 Id. 44, 175 P.3d 206, (Ct. App. 2007), commencing at p. 210 of 175 P.3d R, provides:

The test for materiality is whether the testimony probably would or could influence a tribunal or jury on the issue before it. The false statement relied upon

need not bear directly upon the ultimate issue of fact. A statement is material if it is material to any proper point of inquiry, and if it is calculated and intended to bolster the witness's testimony on some material point or to support or attack his credibility. The degree of materiality is not important.... It is sufficient that it was material, and might have been used to affect such proceeding.

The Taylor brothers suffered the loss of their claims as beneficiaries by Judge Wilper's Order of dismissal in April 2004. In order for any claim to continue they had to obtain control of the trust from the nominated successor trustees, the Rogers, and file a new action on behalf of the trust. The Taylor Brothers sold their birthrights to obtain control of the trust.

After the execution of the Disclaimer Agreement, John Taylor was clear and unequivocal under oath when he stated "my mother, Helen Taylor, is the sole remaining beneficiary of the trust by virtue of the Disclaimer, Release and Indemnity Agreement". The verified petition executed on November 12, 2004, requested the Probate Court to appoint the Taylor brothers as trustees of the Theodore L. Johnson Revocable Trust. The petition prepared by Connie Taylor was executed by John Taylor as a verification of the facts. A verified pleading that sets forth evidentiary facts within the personal knowledge of the verifying signatory is in substance an affidavit, and is accorded the same probative force as an affidavit. Ponderosa Paint Mfg., Inc. v. Yack, 125 Id. 310, 870 P.2d 663 (Ct. App. 1994).

The Verified Petition was filed by the Taylor brothers as a result of Appellants' Motion to Dismiss the trust's complaint. The motion alleged the Taylors had not obtained judicial appointment as non-nominated successor trustees. The Verified Petition before Probate Court

obtained the result it was intended to achieve. The Probate Court on November 17, 2004, appointed the Taylor brothers as successor trustees retroactive to the date of June 10, 2004. John Taylor not only provided his verified petition but he also provided clear and unequivocal deposition testimony that his mother was to receive any and all benefits of any fruits from the litigation (R. Vol 1. p. 2008) (tr. 2/3/11 p. 377 ln. 2; tr. 2/4/11 p. 95 ln.19 thru p.96 ln.9). A judicial admission is a statement made by a party or attorney, in the course of judicial proceedings, for the purpose, or with the effect, of dispensing with the need for proof by the opposing party of some fact. Sun Valley Potato Growers, Inc. v. Texas Refinery Corp., 139 Id. 761, 86 P.3d 475 (2004).

John Taylor provided such declarations on two occasions prior to the opinion in Taylor v. Maile (1). Connie Taylor, acting for the benefit of the Taylors brothers in negotiating the terms of the Disclaimer Agreement, provided declarations that her clients would be willing to give up their rights as beneficiaries (R. Vol 1. p. 000561). Beth Rogers signed an affidavit as requested in the letter from Connie Taylor (R. Vol 1. p. 000541).

The Disclaimer Agreement, provides: "1.2 Disclaimer of All Other Interests....1.2.3:

Taylor.... hereby disclaim all interests whatsoever in the Trust, in favor of their mother, Helen

Taylor, and hereby approve immediate distribution to Helen Taylor." The Agreement recited the

Taylors claimed an ownership interest in the claim or cause of action by the trust. The Taylor

Brothers did not say they considered themselves residual beneficiaries of that portion of the

corpus relating to the cause of action. Nor did they say they were retaining an interest in any future corpus. The Taylor Brothers as beneficiaries did not have any ownership interest in the cause of action initiated by the trust. The trustee(s) owned the chose in action. Trust property is owned by the trustee. Indian Springs LLC v. Indian Springs Land Inv., LLC, 147 Id. 737, 215 P.3d 457 (2009). The beneficiaries of a trust do not have an ownership in the property.

The Taylor brothers were claiming an ownership interest in the litigation which they intended to pursue as a new cause of action as successor trustees. The Taylors wanted control of the new lawsuit because their prior suit *initiated as beneficiaries* had been dismissed.

The judicial admissions clearly establish the Taylors were no longer beneficiaries. The Taylors' mother became the "the sole remaining beneficiary of this trust by virtue of the terms of a Disclaimer, Release and Indemnity Agreement". The Taylors after the Decision in Taylor v. Maile (1) found it convenient to attempt to undo their judicial admissions. The Respondents knew the district court had ruled prior to the Supreme Court Decision, that the **trust** did not have the remedy available of having the real property restored. The district court stated, "once a party treats a contract as valid after the appearance of facts giving rise to a right of rescission, the right of rescission is waived" (R. Vol 1. p. 000649 ln. 10).

Not only were the Taylor brothers no longer beneficiaries of the trust in 2006, they did not represent the interests of their mother. Helen Taylor was never a represented individual or an interested party in any part of the proceeding before Judge Wilper. The Taylor brothers

circulated written contracts to all beneficiaries which required beneficiaries to contribute to the cost of litigation if they were to be represented by the Taylor brothers. Helen Taylor never participated in the litigation which was brought by the Taylor brothers in January 2004. "(R. Vol I. pp. 000565, 569, 570,571, 574, 575).

The Taylor brothers' fraudulent-criminal conduct directly influenced the district court in entering the "Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims". The Taylor brothers in their motion for summary judgment and their briefing were moving for summary judgment solely in their capacity as alleged "residual beneficiaries" (R. Vol I. pp. 000655, 000660). On May 15, 2006, the district court entered its Order Granting Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims (R. Vol I. p. 001355). The Order and resulting Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims had nothing to do with Helen Taylor.

The primary object in interpreting a contract is to discover the intent of the parties, which should, if possible, be ascertained from the language of the document. Win of Michigan, Inc. v. Yreka United, Inc., 137 Id. 747, 750, 53 P.3d 330, 333 (2002). The objective in interpreting a contract is to ascertain and give effect to the intent of the parties. Luzar v. Western Sur. Co., 107 Id. 693, 697, 692 P.2d 337, 341 (1984). Where a contract is determined to be ambiguous, the interpretation of the document is a question of fact which focuses upon the intent of the parties.

Whether an ambiguity exists in a legal instrument is a question of law, over which an appellate court exercises free review. Cool v. Mountainview Landowners Coop. Ass'n, 139 Id.

770, 772, 86 P.3d 484, 486 (2004). Where a legal instrument is found to be unambiguous the legal effect must be decided by the district court as a matter of law; it is only when that instrument is found to be ambiguous that evidence as to the meaning of that instrument may be submitted to the finder of fact. Knipe Land Co. v. Robertson, 37002 (IDSCCI 2011).

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