# UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-23-2011

Berkshires Investments, LLC v. Taylor Respondent's Brief 1 Dckt. 38599

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

> Plaintiffs' remaining claims are abuse of process, negligence, negligence per se, gross negligence, and violation of the title 78. chapter 18 of Idaho Code. A comparison of the facts alleged in the present case to the facts alleged in the prior consolidated cases leaves no doubt that these claims relate to the same transaction that gave rise to the first cases. Berkshire makes much of the supposed fraud perpetrated by defendants. The core fact upon which Berkshire's case is built is an alleged misrepresentation made to Judge Beiter in the application to appoint new Trustees. The Taylors filed a verified petition for appointment as Trustees. The petition contained a statement to the effect that "Helen Taylor is the sole remaining beneficiary of the Trust." The petition was later amended to reflect that she was not the sole beneficiary. In Berkshire's view, the first allegation was true and the second false. Consequently, when the Taylors later caused the Trust to file suit against Berkshire alleging they were beneficiaries of the Trust, this was a false statement under oath. Likewise, the amended complaint filed in the consolidated cases after the first appeal contained this same false statement. Not only could any issues arising from this alleged fraud have been raised in the earlier case, the opinion of the Supreme Court in Maile II reflects this issue was argued in the most recent appeal and rejected.

Memorandum Decision and Order 10-11, R. at 1372-73.

The Mailes' claim that the Taylors made a false statement concerning their status

as beneficiaries was argued by the Mailes in the previous litigation. In their reply brief on appeal

of Taylor v. Maile II, they argued that the Taylors should not be entitled to attorney fees because they had falsely claimed their status as beneficiaries and misled Judge Wilper in obtaining the "Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims." R. Exh. 12 at 38-39. In that same brief, the Mailes argued that the verified petition stating that Helen Taylor was the sole remaining beneficiary was a judicial admission made by R. John Taylor and his wife, Connie Taylor. The Mailes argued that the judicial admission was binding upon them and the Taylors' misrepresentation regarding their status as beneficiaries constituted grounds for setting aside the "Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claim entered on June 7, 2006." R. Exh. 12 at 7-8.

Although the Supreme Court did not agree that the judgment must be set aside, the Mailes cannot deny that they raised the issue in *Taylor v. Maile II*. Issue preclusion should protect the Taylors or those in privity with the Taylors from having to relitigate the identical issue with the Mailes. *Kootenai Elec. Coop., Inc. v. Lamar Corp.*, 148 Idaho 116, 120, 219 P.3d 440, 444 (2009); *Ticor Title v. Stanion*, 144 Idaho 119, 123, 157 P.3d 613, 617 (2007).

#### **B.** Privity.

*Res judicata* applies to bar subsequent litigation between parties or those in privity with the parties to the previous litigation. *Ticor, supra,* at 618 (citing *Foster v. City of St. Anthony,* 122 Idaho 883, 888, 841 P.2d 413, 418 (1992)). Clark and Feeney was not a party to the former action, but acted as counsel for the Taylors in the former action. For an individual or entity not a party to a former action to be in privity with a party to the former action, the individual or entity "must derive his interest from one who is a part to it, that is, . . . he [must be] in privity with the party to that judgment." *Id.* Idaho courts have not specifically addressed the

Client:2128978.1

issue of privity between attorneys and their clients for purposes of *res judicata*. The Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals, however, has provided that when law firms or attorneys appear as defendants in subsequent litigation "by virtue of their activities as representatives" of named parties to prior litigation, such attorneys or law firms are in privity with their clients for purposes of *res judicata*. *Plotner v. AT&T Corp.*, 224 F.3d 1161, 1169 (10th Cir. 2000) (citing *Henry v. Farmer City State Bank*, 808 F.2d 1228, 1235, n.6 (7th Cir. 1986) (holding that for purposes of *res judicata*, privity exists between a party and its attorneys)).

Clark and Feeney's interest in this proceeding is derived entirely from its participation in prior related proceedings as legal counsel for the Taylors. The Mailes' fraudbased allegations against Clark and Feeney are based upon the preparation of pleadings submitted by Clark and Feeney on behalf of the Taylors. The Mailes also allege that Clark and Feeney's alleged misrepresentations in the prior litigation were an abuse of its position as officers of the court. Thus, Clark and Feeney clearly derives its interest in this matter from its representation as counsel for the Taylors, and they are in privity with the Taylors for purposes of *res judicata*. The Mailes do not seem to contest privity in their Appellants' Brief.

# C. Claim Preclusion.

The Mailes' attempts to refer to the same issue by a different name does not change the application of *res judicata*. The Mailes raised the issue concerning the alleged misrepresentation about the status of the beneficiaries as a standing issue in Judge Wilper's court. Standing was the primary issue involved in the first *Taylor v. Maile* appeal. In fact, the Mailes have admitted that the "central issue" of the *Taylor v. Maile* case was the issue of the

"standing or the beneficiary status of the Taylors as it allegedly affected the Taylors' claim of being deprived notice of the sale of the real property by a successor trustee who had a conflict of interest." Supplemental Brief In Response to Supreme Court Opinion, filed September 4, 2009, R. at 876. The Mailes argued that the "central issue" concerning the status of the beneficiaries was never adjudicated, but the truth is that the issue was simply not adjudicated in the Mailes' favor. The Mailes admitted:

The plaintiffs [the Mailes] brought the facts surrounding the misrepresentation to the Idaho Supreme Court in their briefing as they alleged that the Taylors had insufficient standing as beneficiaries to rescind the transaction as the Taylors acknowledged under oath that they were no longer beneficiaries and that their mother was the sole beneficiary. Plaintiffs had a right to have that determined as an issue of standing. Standing is an issue that can be raised at any time at either the District Court level or at the appellate level. The plaintiffs legitimately raised that issue and that issue remains unresolved to this date. *Id.*, R. pp. 880-81.

Thus, the Mailes have admitted that they raised the issue in the earlier litigation, at least before the Idaho Supreme Court. In their own briefing, the Mailes admitted that the issue of standing could have been litigated at either the district court or appellate court level and that they attempted to do. Therefore, the issue concerning the alleged misrepresentation about the beneficiaries' status was a matter "which might and should have been litigated" or could have been brought in the earlier litigation. Thus, the claim preclusion component of *res judicata* applies. *Kootenai Elec. Coop., Inc., v. Lamar Corp.,* 148 Idaho 116, 120, 219 P.3d 440, 444 (2009). Unsatisfied with the results of the earlier litigation, the Mailes are simply trying to

"obtain a further bite at the apple" by re-characterizing the claims they made in the earlier litigation. A primary purpose of the *res judicata* doctrine is to prevent just such an occurrence. *Id.* at 122, 219 P.3d at 446.

In determining whether the Mailes' claims in this action should be precluded, their legal theories do not control. Instead, this Court applies a "transactional concept . . . giving weight to such considerations as whether the facts are related in time, space, origin, or motivation, whether they form a convenient trial unit, and whether their treatment as a unit conforms to the party's expectations or business understanding or usage." Ticor Title Co. v. Stanion, 144 Idaho 119, 126, 157 P.3d 613, 620 (2007) (quoting Aldape v. Akins, 105 Idaho 254, 259, 668 P.2d 130, 135 (Ct. App. 1983)). The facts concerning whether Helen Taylor was the sole beneficiary of the Trust, or whether the other Taylors were beneficiaries, are all related in time, space, origin and motivation, whether they were pertinent to issues concerning standing or the current claim of "fraud on the court." Counsel for the Mailes admitted that "The same facts give rise" to both the standing claim made in the earlier litigation and the current claim of misconduct by the Taylors and their attorneys. Tr., Hearings held 10/29/10, 11/30/10, 1/18/11, p. 9, LL. 23-24. At the trial held on February 2, 2011, Mrs. Maile also admitted that her husband knew the facts regarding the status of the beneficiaries in 2004, but they were not "looking for misrepresentation." Tr. Vol. I, p. 345, LL. 6-16.

In *Ticor*, *supra*, the court held that the "operative underlying facts of the prior motions" and the claim made by Ticor were the same. 144 Idaho at 126, 157 P.3d at 620. Similarly, the operative underlying facts concerning the Mailes' claim that the Taylors lacked

standing as beneficiaries were the same facts that they are using to support their claims of fraud on the court in this case. Judge Greenwood correctly applied the transactional analysis and granted summary judgment on the basis of claim preclusion.

## D. There Was No Basis for the Fraud Claim.

The Mailes devote a significant portion of their initial brief to their argument that a fraud on the court avoids the application of *res judicata*. As Judge Greenwood succinctly held, the conduct of which the Mailes complain is not sufficient to set aside the judgment of Judge Wilper. The Mailes seize upon the language of Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 60(b) and Idaho case law allowing the court to overturn a judgment on the basis of fraud. There are two simple reasons why Rule 60(b) does not apply to this case, the first of which was noted by Judge Greenwood in his Memorandum Decision granting summary judgment: First, a Rule 60(b) motion should have been made in Judge Wilper's court; and second, Rule 60(b) requires that the motion on the basis of fraud be made not more than six months after the judgment was entered. The "Judgment on Beneficiaries' Claims" of which the Mailes complain was entered on June 7, 2006 (R. Vol. 1, p. 119). No motion based upon Rule 60(b) was ever made in Judge Wilper's court. The complaint in this case, even if it was construed as a Rule 60(b) motion, was not filed within six months of that judgment.

A third reason for dismissing the Mailes' claim of fraud on the court, which was also noted by Judge Greenwood, is that the conduct in this case does not amount to fraud on the court. The Mailes complain that the Taylors first filed a petition stating that Helen Taylor was the sole beneficiary of the Trust and that the Taylors are bound by that petition. The alleged

misrepresentation or fraud upon the court is contained in an amended petition by the Taylors, in which they claimed they were residual beneficiaries of the Trust and therefore had standing to sue. This Court recently held that a similar claim of fraud upon the court was "ridiculous." *Rae v. Bunce*, 145 Idaho 798, 803, 186 P.3d 654, 659 (2008). The Mailes are simply dissatisfied with the outcome of their litigation and are attempting to bring an independent action, rather than file a Rule 60(b) motion in Judge Wilper's court. "An independent action to set aside a judgment based upon an alleged fraud upon the court is not a substitute for actions that could have been taken in the trial court to correct the prejudice from allegedly wrongful conduct." *Id.* at 805, 186 P.3d at 661. The Mailes knew the terms of the Trust. Mr. Maile prepared it. He should have known what the Trust specified regarding the beneficiaries in 2004. They should have litigated those issues before Judge Wilper, rather than attempt to have another judge overturn Judge Wilper's decision. *Id.* 

Allegations in pleadings are merely allegations or arguments that provide notice to the other parties and are admitted or denied by the other parties, often amended, omitted or even rejected by a judge or jury. Allegations in pleadings are statements of an advocate and should not be used as personal admissions against the attorneys advocating the position for their clients. *See Heinze v. Bauer*, 145 Idaho 232, 238, 178 P.3d 597, 603 (2008). If allegations of pleadings could form the basis of a claim for fraud on the court, "every losing defendant would then have a cause of action against the successful and the winning plaintiff's counsel." Memorandum Decision and Order 12, R. at 1374.

The following statement from *Compton v. Compton* has been repeated often by this Court: "The independent action in equity is a most unusual remedy, available only rarely and under the most exceptional circumstances. It is most certainly not its function to relitigate issues determined in another action between the same parties or to remedy the inadvertence or oversight of one of the parties to the original action. It will lie only in the presence of an extreme degree of fraud." Compton v. Compton, 101 Idaho 328, 335, 612 P.2d 1175, 1182 (1980). Mr. Maile was not "prevented by trick, artifice, or other fraudulent conduct from fairly presenting his claims or defenses or introducing relevant and material evidence." Flood v. Katz, 143 Idaho 454, 457, 147 P.3d 86, 89 (2006) (quoting Campbell v. Kildew, 141 Idaho 640, 649, 115 P.3d 731, 740 (2005), and citing *Compton, supra*, at 334, 612 P.2d at 1181). The claims by the Taylors that they were beneficiaries of the Trust were no different than routine claims made in thousands of pleadings that parties had standing or the court had jurisdiction. They were simply allegations that Judge Wilper, and presumably this Court, believed, not because of any fraud on the courts, but because they were true. The Mailes' fraud claims deserve to be dismissed.

## E. The Fraud Claims Were Time-Barred.

The Mailes contend that they discovered "the fraudulent/criminal behavior while preparing their opening brief in *Taylor v. Maile 2*." Appellants' Opening Brief 20. They provide no authority or explanation for this statement. In particular, they provide no explanation for why they did not discover the inconsistency concerning the status of the beneficiaries when they

received the pertinent pleadings. Mr. Maile drafted the trust agreement and should have been aware of the status of the beneficiaries to that Trust.

The Mailes ignore the time requirements of Rule 60(b). The rule permits a motion for relief of a final judgment on the basis of fraud. Although the rule does state that the motion shall be made "within a reasonable time," it specifically states that a motion made on the basis of fraud must be made no more than six months after the judgment. The Mailes have clearly exceeded the time limits of the rule.

The Mailes are correct that Rule 60(b) "does not limit the power of a court to entertain an independent action . . . to set aside a judgment for fraud upon the court." *See Eliopulos v. Idaho State Bank*, 129 Idaho 104, 108, 922 P.2d 401, 404 (Ct. App. 1996). The Court of Appeals in *Eliopulos* stated that although an independent action for equitable relief from a fraudulent judgment may be brought in any court of competent jurisdiction, the normal procedure should be by motion in the court that rendered the judgment. Because the remedy Eliopulos sought was available in the courts that rendered judgments, the Court of Appeals held that it was not an abuse of discretion to decline jurisdiction over the independent action under Rule 60(b). *Id.* at 109. Similarly, it was not an abuse of discretion for Judge Greenwood to decline jurisdiction over an independent action for fraud on the court when a remedy was still available in the case pending before Judge Wilper. The court further held that an independent action should not be allowed when there is no bar to bringing the action in the rendering court. *Id.* at 110. The Mailes were not barred from bringing the action in Judge Wilper's court. Rather, they apparently decided that Judge Wilper was not likely to agree with their arguments. The

equitable relief of an independent action based upon fraud on the court should not be an excuse for forum shopping.

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